RFP N00421-04-R-0082

Amendment 1


 Vendor Questions & NAVAIR Responses

1.
Pages 2, 4, 5, and 6, the “Note” for each Labor Category tier in Schedule B asks that key labor categories be identified and that the offeror must provide key labor summaries in accordance with Section L.

Question:  Does the Government require the offeror to denote key personnel or key labor categories? 

NAVAIR Response:  Both.  Offerors are to identify which proposed labor categories are key.  Consequently, all personnel proposed under these lbr categories are to be considered Key Personnel.

2.
Page 33 of 73, Clause 5252.237-9501, “Addition or Substitution of Personnel” and the Alternate Clause on page 34 of 75 infer that resumes must be submitted and approved for key personnel, yet the RFP does not require the submission of resumes.  The alternate clause further compounds the problem by stating at subparagraph (i) that the Government may or may not have accepted all personnel submitted by the contractor.  This raises several questions:

Question:  How can the Government evaluate whether the personnel are qualified when no labor category requirements are provided, no labor category descriptions are required to be submitted, no resumes are required to be submitted, and the only opportunity an offeror has to highlight key personnel experience is a one-page summary?

NAVAIR Response:  The Government will not be evaluating whether personnel are qualified, rather the Government will be evaluating the extent to which the proposed personnel (i.e. staffing & labor mix) will contribute to a successsful accomplishment of the PWS for the five year period.  With regard to this solicitation, “Resumes” and Key Personnel Summaries are to be considered synonymous terms.  Section L.2.2(a) has been revised to state that a key personnel summary is to be provided for EACH person identified under a key labor category. 

3.
The Addition or Substitution of Personnel clauses seem inconsistent with the Government’s stated intent of awarding a fixed price, performance-based, IDIQ contract which was the stared reason for the deletion of labor category requirements at the Industry Day.  Subparagraph (j) of the Addition or Substitution of Personnel clause also is inconsistent with a performance-based, fixed price effort. The offeror is assuming the risk of performing at the stated prices and downward adjustment of rates is not appropriate, especially considering that no labor category requirements will exist for the Government to evaluate the qualifications of any proposed addition or substitution.

3(a) Question:  Does the substitution requirement at subparagraph (d) of the cited clause apply to the overall contract or individual task orders?


NAVAIR Response:  Overall Contract.

3(b) Question:  How can the Government implement expedited task order procedures if the contractor must submit resumes 30 days in advance of an order?

NAVAIR Response:  Resumes/Key Personnel Summaries are only to be provided when it is anticipated that those individuals identified as key are to be replaced on the contract.  The intent of this clause is to prevent a “bait/switch” type scenario where certain individuals are proposed as key to the program and then are replaced after contract award with less qualified personnel.  If an offeror does not propose any of their personnel as key, then the requirement for the key personnel summaries as well as an approval prior to substitution is moot.  However, an entirely fluid/unguaranteed labor force might not be evaluated as a staffing or labor mix strategy that is conducive to successsful accomplishment of the PWS over the five-year period.

3(c) Question:  What format must the resumes be provided in?

NAVAIR Response:  The format is to be consistent with the way the successful offeror submitted their key personnel summaries in response to the solicitation.

3(d) Question:  What criteria will be used to evaluate the resumes for approval or disapproval?

NAVAIR Response:  The COR and the Contracting Officer will determine whether the proposed substitution is of equal qualification as the substituted party(ies), based on the proposed/accepted key personnel summaries/resumes that were originally submitted by the successful offeror.

4.
Page 48 of 75, Clause 52.219-1. The NAICS Code was provided at Industry Day, but is not included in the RFP.

Question:  Please confirm the NAICS Code and size standard.

NAVAIR Response:  NAICS Code is 541330.  Size Standard is $23M.  Clause 52.219-1 is now updated.

5. 
Page 56 of 75, Clause L.1.a provides volume numbers only and L.1.c.(1) provides titles.

Question:  Are the titles listed in parentheses at the second bullet the actual volume names, i.e., Offer, Offeror Capability Information, and Price/Cost Supporting Information?

NAVAIR Response:  Yes.  VOL I will be the Offer; VOL II will be the Offeror Capability Information, and; VOL III will be the Price/Cost Supporting Information. 

6.
Page 56 of 75, Clause L.1.b. states that you may use foldout pages up to size 17 x 11 inches only for diagrams, charges, or graphical material…

6(a) Question:  Are RFP Attachments 3, 4, and 5 considered “…diagrams, charts, or graphic material” given the nature of the requested material?


NAVAIR Response:  Yes.

6(b) Question:  May the offeror use 11x17 foldouts and consolidate the multiple page forms to present this material?

NAVAIR Response:  No.  Each matrix must be submitted individually.  Consolidation of the information will lead to confusion during evaluations.  It is noted that the information may become burdensome with respect to Attachment (3); however, this is the only format that will provide consistency across the PWS tasks.

Note:
Strict compliance with the forms provided in the RFP will result in significant amounts of repetitive information.  For example, if a person has experience in multiple PWS task areas, they may appear on up to six individual pages in Attachment (3). 

7.
Page 57 of 75, Clause L.2.2.a. states that overview is to be limited to 15 pages.

Question:   Please confirm that Attachment (3) is not included in the 15 page limit for this section (regardless of the answer to the previous question) given that it will be a minimum of six pages in length (and will likely be much longer) if the offeror strictly complies with the preparation instructions.

NAVAIR Response:  The 15 page limit (last sentence under L.2.2.a.) is followed by “(not including graphs, charts, or diagrams).”  Therfore, the page limit does not include Attachment (3).

8.
Page 57 of 75, clause L.2.2.a.(1) instructs offerors to provide a “…1-Page Key Personnel summary.”  At Industry day, it was stated that the limit was one page per key person. However, the page limit for this section, in which the offeror must address its understanding of the entire PWS is 15 pages.

Question:  Please clarify the intent of this statement, what information the Government wants with respect to key personnel, and whether the key personnel summary (or summaries if the intent is one page per key person) does or does not count in the 15 page section limit.

NAVAIR Response:  The 15 page limit pertains to the Understanding of the Work OVERVIEW.  This is the entire overview of what your firm intends to present during the oral presentation.  The Overview is to discuss your proposed understanding and capability to perform the requirements of the PWS.  The Understanding of the Work submission is to include the Personnel Resource Matrix and the 1-page Key Personnel summary for EACH personnel identified as key.  

Note: Describing the qualifications and experience of proposed key personnel on a one page summary does not allow the offeror the ability to adequately address the requirement, especially if the offeror must designate entire labor categories as key, which therefore makes ALL personnel proposed in that category key personnel. Further, it does not provide the Government with the appropriate information to determine the qualifications of proposed key personnel for “approval” purposes per the Addition and Substitution of Personnel clause(s). If the statement at Industry day is the true intent for this section, then dedicating multiple pages to key personnel does not allow the offeror to adequately describe its approach to performing the PWS, even in summary fashion given that there are 18 PWS tasks.

9.
Page 58 of 75, clause L.2.2.c.(2). The Industry Day presentation stated that management approach page limit is 10 pages; however, the RFP was not changed to reflect the new page limit.

Question:  Please confirm that the actual page limit is 10 pages.

NAVAIR Response:  The solicitation has been updated to reflect the correct page limit, which is 10 pages.

10.
Page 58 of 75, clause L.2.2.d. Subparagraphs (2) and (3) of this clause infers that written material must be provided in addition to the Attachment (5) Past Performance Matrix.

Question:  Please confirm that a written response to these subparagraphs is desired and provide the page limits for the section. Recommend five pages (not including Attachment (5)).

NAVAIR Response:  The Past Performance Matrix (Attachment 5) is to be completed with the references that the Past Performance Questionnaires (Attachment 6) were sent to.  To summarize L.2.2(d), each offeror and their subcontractor(s) is to provide the past performance questionnaire to at least three (3) references and instruct those references to complete the questionnaire and to either e-mail or fax it back to the Government.  Each offeror and their subcontractor(s) are to provide confirmation that the questionnaire was sent to their references (i.e. fax confirmation, etc…). 

11.
Page 59 of 75, clause L.2.3.b. states that you must submit an electronic copy of the complete cost proposal including subcontractor cost information on a 3.5 inch, double-sided-high density functional computer diskette…

Question:  May the offeror submit this information on a Compact Disk as long as it complies with all other submittal requirements?


NAVAIR Response:  Compact Disks are acceptable.

12.
Page 59 of 75, paragraph L.2.3.b. (1). This table provides a different level of effort that Schedule B in option years 3 and 4.

Question:  Please confirm that this table is the correct level of effort and update schedule B accordingly.

NAVAIR Response:  Section L.2.3.b.(1) is correct.  Section B, Labor Hour Option 3 and 4 are hereby updated under Amendment 1.

13.
Page 61 of 75, paragraph L.2.3.d. (1). The Note under the table refers to Lots I, II and III.

Question:   Please clarify the intent of this note.

NAVAIR Response:  The table provided under L.2.3.d.(1) is an example of a cost matrix that could be followed when preparing your cost matrix.  “LOT I, II, III” refers to the performance period for hour estimates.  LOT I is the base year, LOT II is Option year I, LOT II is Option year II, etc.

14.
Page 65 of 75 paragraph L.2.4.b (8). This paragraph requires offerors to provide paper copies of the presentation.

Question:  Will the government also require an electronic copy of the presentation? 


NAVAIR Response:  No.

Question:  How many paper copies are required?


NAVAIR Response:  Ten (10) paper copies.

15)  Reference:  Section B and Section L.2.3 
In the breakdown of labor hours shown in Section L.2.3 and those provided in Section B, Option Period III (CLIN 3001) and Option Period IV (CLIN 4001), there is a discrepancy between Section L and B regarding the total number of hours for each Labor Category Tier. Should the offeror assume the total number of hours per Option Periods I through IV is 57,051?

NAVAIR Response:  Section L.2.3.b.(1) is correct.  Section B, Labor Hour Option 3 and 4 are hereby updated under Amendment 1.

16) Reference: Section L.2.2.a 
Should the offeror assume that it is to submit a 1-page Key Personnel Summary for each Key Personnel Candidate identified? Please clarify.


NAVAIR Response:  Yes.

17) Reference: Section L.2.2. 
The RFP states,  “Provide evidence of your company’s experience doing work similar to the work contemplated by the RFP during the last three (3) years (From the issue date of this solicitation).”

Due to the scope of the Performance Work Statement (PWS) and the number of hours associated with the level of effort for this contract (57,051/yr), it is assumed the reference to “your company’s experience” implies the experience resident in all the members of the Prime Contractors Team of companies proposed for this solicitation. Please confirm.


NAVAIR Response:  Correct.

18) Reference: Section L.2.3.b. 
To better insure the integrity of our data, can the offeror provide the required electronic copy of its cost proposal on CD-ROM, rather than 3.5 inch double-sided, high density computer diskette?


NAVAIR Response:  Yes.

19) Reference: Section L.2.3.d. (3) 
Given that this contract is for FFP delivery orders and not a level of effort, it can be anticipated that the staffing required to fulfill the FFP tasks will not necessarily be full time personnel. This is reinforced by the government’s example matrix. Based upon this it would seem reasonable to map only Key Personnel to Major Areas of the PWS.  Does the Government require the offeror to list the Major Areas of the PWS for the Key Personnel only, or for all individuals proposed by the Prime and Subs? 

NAVAIR Response:  The Personnel Experience Matrix (Attachment 3) requires all personnel, key and non-key, to be listed.  Key personnel should be identified by name.

20) Reference: Section M (c)     
Where the RFP makes reference to “the Past Performance Matrix, Attachment 6, and Past Performance Questionnaire, Attachment 7,” should the offeror assume that the referenced attachments are the Past Performance Matrix - Attachment 5, and Past Performance Questionnaire - Attachment 6? Please clarify.

NAVAIR Response:  The Past Performance Matrix and Past Performance Questionnaire are attachments 5 and 6 respectively.  Section M.2.D(c) has been updated accordingly.

21) Reference: Attachment 1, Performance Work Statement, page 10
The PWS states, “The contractor shall be capable of applying M&S for operational analysis identified by AIR 4.10 relevant to specific analyses.  Examples of relevant M&S include, but are not limited to:

1.      Extended Air Defense Simulation (EADSIM),

2.      Naval Simulation System (NSS)

3.      BRAWLER

4.      THUNDER

5.      Network Warfare Analysis (NETWARS)

6.      Enhanced Surface-to-Air Missile Simulation (ESAMS)

7.      General Campaign Analysis Model (GCAM)

8.      ITEM

9.      COSMOS

10.     Joint Services Endgame Model (JSEM)

11.     Fast Shot-line Generator (FASTGEN) 

12.     Computation of Vulnerability and Repair Time (COVART) 

13.     SPECTRUM

14.     

15.     Managed Attrition End Game (MAEG)

16.     SHAZAM

17.     Active System Performance Estimate Computer Tool (ASPECT)

18.     

19.     

Can the offeror assume that the list is complete as is, or will the Government revise this list to include the missing relevant M&S for numbers 14, 18, and 19? 

NAVAIR Response:  The list is complete as-is and should only be numbered up to 16.  The PWS has been revised accordingly.
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